
City of Keene Minor Project Review Committee 

AGENDA 

Thursday, December 8, 2022     10:00 AM      City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers 

I. Call to Order – Roll Call

II. Minutes of Previous Meeting – March 10, 2022

III. Public Hearing

SPR-881, Modification #2 – Site Plan – 342 Winchester St - Applicant Sampson Architects, on
behalf of owner Riverside Improvements LLC, proposes to renovate the eastern tenant space and
build an addition approximately 321 sf in size on the building located at 342 Winchester St (TMP
#111-004-000-004-000) for use as a Ramunto’s restaurant. The site is 0.68 ac in size and is part
of the larger Riverside Plaza located in the Commerce District.

IV. Adoption of 2023 Meeting Schedule

V. Upcoming Meeting Dates
• December 22, 2022 at 10:00 am (If needed due to continued public hearing)
• January 12, 2023 at 10:00 am



City of Keene 1 
New Hampshire 2 

 3 
 4 

MINOR PROJECT REVIEW COMMITTEE 5 
MEETING MINUTES 6 

 7 
Thursday, March 10, 2022               10:00 AM Council Chambers, 

City Hall 
Members Present: 
John Rogers, Chair 
Don Lussier  
Med Kopczynski, Vice Chair 
Mari Brunner 
Michael Hagan, Alternate (10:04 AM) 
 
Members Not Present: 
Kürt Blomquist, Alternate 
Lt. John Bates 

Other Staff Present: 
Megan Fortson, Planning 
Technician 
Evan Clements, Planner 
Deputy Chief Jeffrey Chickering, 
Fire Department  

 8 
1) Call to Order – Roll Call 9 

 10 
Chair Rogers called the meeting to order at 10:02 AM.  Roll call was conducted.  11 
 12 
2) Minutes of the Previous Meeting – December 9, 2022 13 

 14 
Mr. Kopczynski made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of December 9, 2022.  Mr. Lussier 15 
seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous vote.  16 
 17 
Chair Rogers stated that Deputy Chief Jeffrey Chickering from the Fire Department is here today 18 
as a staff member to give comments on these applications. He continued that he is not here as a 19 
voting committee member. The committee needs to have the Planning Board nominate and 20 
approve someone from the Fire Department to serve on this committee. 21 
 22 

3) Public Hearings 23 
A) SPR-01-22 – Site Plan – 14 Rose Lane - Applicant and owner Davis Oil Company 24 

Inc. proposes to install two 30,000-gal propane storage tanks on the property 25 
located at 14 Rose Ln (TMP# 120- 008-000-000-000). The property is 1.6-ac in 26 
size and is located in the Industrial District. 27 

 28 
Chair Rogers introduced SPR-01-22 and asked to hear from staff.   29 
 30 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician, stated that the applicant has requested exemptions from 31 
providing a grading plan, lighting plan, drainage report, traffic analysis, historic evaluation 32 

2 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 2 of 13 
 

analysis, screening analysis, and architectural and visual appearance analysis. Staff feel that these 33 
application submittal items have no issues and recommends that the committee grant the 34 
application as complete.   35 
 36 
Ms. Brunner made a motion to accept the application as complete. Mr. Lussier seconded the 37 
motion, which passed by unanimous vote. Mr. Kopczynski asked if the motion to accept the 38 
application as complete also covered the exemptions. Chair Rogers replied in the affirmative. 39 
 40 
Chair Rogers noted that Mr. Hagan is now present and is a voting member. He opened the public 41 
hearing and asked to hear from the applicant. 42 
 43 
Steve Walsh, of 80 Silent Way, stated that he is the president of Davis Oil in Keene.  He continued 44 
that Bob Coluccio, their engineer, created the plans for this project and will present it to the Board.  45 
 46 
Robert Coluccio of Web Engineering Associates, 111 Summer St., Scituate, MA, stated that he is 47 
a professional engineer in the state of NH.  He continued that their business is designing these 48 
types of facilities for propane and oil storage.  The installer, Troy Phillips, is here in the audience.  49 
He is with Hall Trask Equipment, Roxanne Park Dr., Braintree, MA.  Mr. Phillips is a CETP 50 
trainer.  CTEP is a course you have to take to operate facilities like this.   51 
 52 
Mr. Coluccio stated that the proposal is to install two 30,000-gallon propane tanks.  He continued 53 
that there is at least one such facility in Keene to which this new facility will look identical to in 54 
size, scope, and shape.  He went on to explain that the property is located in the Industrial Zone 55 
on a private road.  It is positioned such that the working area of the site is about 25 feet lower than 56 
Main Street, which it abuts.  Right now, Mr. Walsh operates an oil storage facility there.  He has 57 
a 50,000-gallon oil tank and three 15,000-gallon tanks of other oils, like kerosene and diesel fuel.  58 
He operates an oil delivery facility and brings oil to people’s houses.  He also rents space to 59 
someone for storage of roll-off dumpsters.  With the proposed installation of the two 30,000 gallon 60 
tanks, there will be no room to store the roll-off dumpsters, so the storage operation will be 61 
terminated.  The property will not be overcrowded.  Mr. Walsh is not trying to squeeze something 62 
in.  He is replacing it with something that has less of a presence than the roll-offs, because the roll-63 
offs move every day, whereas the propane facility, like the oil, gets most of its business during the 64 
few cold months of the winter.   65 
 66 
Mr. Coluccio continued by explaining that his company presented its Fire Safety Analysis to the 67 
Fire Department and the Fire Department granted a permit to operate the facility.  It is his and Mr. 68 
Walsh’s understanding that it has been vetted in that regard.  He asked Chair Rogers if he should 69 
go through the exemptions one by one, or if his narrative was sufficient.  Chair Rogers replied that 70 
it is up to him as the applicant.   71 
 72 
Mr. Coluccio stated that they are asking for exemptions from submitting drainage and stormwater 73 
reports, because they are not making any changes that will impact either of these items.  He 74 
continued by explaining that they submitted a Floodplain Development Permit application for the 75 

3 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 3 of 13 
 

installation of the propane tanks. The only change they are making to grading is that they are 76 
adding some compensatory storage.  The compensatory storage is about seven yards, because they 77 
are accounting for the piers that the propane tanks stand on.  At other facilities in Keene, you will 78 
notice this thin, concrete pier; it is a very small amount.  Right now, the property is the low point 79 
for the area.  They are not changing that at all, nor are they changing impervious surfaces.   80 
 81 
Mr. Coluccio continued that they had to do a soil analysis for the floodplain application, so they 82 
are requesting an exemption from providing any additional soil analysis. If they are not doing a 83 
stormwater analysis, then they would obviously not need to go into that. Regarding the installation 84 
of sediment and erosion control measures, the operation will happen relatively quickly. The piers 85 
will be pre-cast. There will be a hole dug the day of or the day before, and they will put the piers 86 
in the hole, and then backfill it. It takes just a couple days. There will not be much stockpiling of 87 
soil, so they expect most of the soil to go back in the hole. They will put a cover over it, to keep it 88 
from being affected by rain or wind.   89 
 90 
He continued by explaining that they are requesting an exemption from snow storage removal, 91 
because they will not have to plow there anymore once the dumpster roll-offs are removed.  The 92 
tanks will be there, but you do not plow around the tanks.  He explain that [Davis Oil] might have 93 
to hand shovel around them, to get to equipment, but that is a reduction in the snow.  On the plan, 94 
he showed where the snow storage is now.  At best, they are proposing that there will be no 95 
increase, and practically speaking, there will probably be a decrease. 96 
 97 
Mr. Coluccio continued by stating that regarding landscaping, the property is shielded from any 98 
abutters that might be concerned.  It is 25 feet below Main St., and it is heavily wooded between 99 
Main St. property and this property, with a steep slope, so they believe there is ample screening 100 
there.  They do not believe they need landscaping from the abutters on this private road because 101 
they are commercial and industrial in nature.  They are asking for an exemption from screening 102 
for the same reasons as landscaping. He noted that they are also not adding any lighting.  Mr. 103 
Walsh considers the current lighting ample for his oil facility.  Unless it is an emergency, the 104 
operations will take place during daylight.  There is no sewer or water on the site and they are not 105 
proposing any. 106 
 107 
Mr. Coluccio continued by stating that most of the existing traffic for Mr. Walsh’s oil facilities is 108 
during the winter months.  There was traffic with the roll-offs, which will be going away.  The 109 
propane will probably result in a net wash of the amount of truck traffic on the site, but again, most 110 
of the propane use occurs in the winter and very little during the summer.  With filling and 111 
excavation, nothing exceeds the Article 23 or Article 24 requirements.  There are no surface waters 112 
or wetlands on the property.  Regarding hazardous and toxic materials, LP gas is preferred, if you 113 
have to have an energy source in any kind of aquifer protection area.  LP gas exists as a liquid 114 
under pressure, but once it hits the atmosphere, it becomes a vapor.  Thus, you do not have the 115 
environmental impacts as with propane. 116 
 117 

4 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 4 of 13 
 

Mr. Coluccio continued that there will be no increase in noise.  The pumps are almost the same.  118 
He has done noise studies before, in other cases, but this is an existing facility and they are not 119 
proposing any increase in the noise.  It is just another pump that will be there.  Regarding 120 
architectural and visual appearance, it is an Industrial Zone, and this will probably be the best-121 
looking thing in the area.   122 
 123 
Mr. Coluccio concluded that those are [all of the standards and items that they are seeking 124 
exemptions from]. 125 
 126 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that for the benefit of the public and people who do not know, the propane 127 
tank at 350 Marlboro St., which is the Public Works facility, is a 30,000-gallon tank.  He continued 128 
that [this proposal is for] the same tank twice, if you want to look at it that way.  Mr. Coluccio 129 
replied yes, and it is only about 15 feet high.  That is based on the floodplain, which they are 130 
keeping the whole thing out of.  It is still lower than what would be visible from anyone who is 131 
concerned.  It is lower than the tanks there now as well. 132 
 133 
Chair Rogers asked if staff had any questions or comments for the applicant. 134 
 135 
Mr. Lussier stated that he agrees that the erosion and sediment control plan is not necessary for 136 
this project, but the package does not include a detail on the proposed riprap slope stabilization.  137 
He continued by suggesting that as a condition of approval, the applicant be required to submit a 138 
riprap slope stabilization detail for approval by the City Engineer.  139 
 140 
Ms. Brunner stated that with respect to noise, in the past the City has received complaints about 141 
industrial/commercial properties adjacent to residential properties, like this one is, with truck 142 
traffic coming early in the morning or late at night.  She asked if they expect any truck traffic 143 
earlier than 7:00 AM. 144 
 145 
Mr. Walsh replied that usually the deliveries are between 8:00 and 11:00 AM, or once a while in 146 
the afternoon.  He continued that maybe they have one nighttime delivery per year.  Regarding the 147 
noise of traffic going in and out, Monadnock Disposal currently uses space at Davis Oil to store 148 
their empty containers.  The company is based in Jaffrey and uses Davis Oil’s yard to shuffle in 149 
and out of job sites.  That existing traffic would go away.  As Mr. Coluccio said, there will be a 150 
net reduction in traffic.  The noise of the asphalt plant’s operations is substantially more noise than 151 
Davis Oil will ever create.  Regarding the noise of the pumps, they now use two fuel pumps to 152 
unload to their trucks.  The pump for the propane will be the same thing. 153 
 154 
Ms. Brunner asked about the screening between this property and the residential properties.  She 155 
believes this is the first site plan the City has for this site.  There currently exists a thick vegetative 156 
buffer between this site and the residential properties.  She asked if Mr. Walsh could include a note 157 
on the plan to stating that he will maintain that vegetative buffer into the future. 158 
 159 

5 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 5 of 13 
 

Mr. Walsh replied that he assumes she is talking about the top of the hill towards Main St., looking 160 
down on his property.  Ms. Brunner replied yes, between his property and the residential properties 161 
on Main St.  Mr. Walsh replied that within a year, the fence there was removed, by the building’s 162 
owner.  He continued that it does not matter to Davis Oil.  Yes, he has to leave [the vegetative 163 
buffer] there as part of erosion control. 164 
 165 
Mr. Lussier stated that that is a great segue to something he wants to discuss with the Committee, 166 
although it is not necessarily pertinent to this application.  He continued that a section of the City’s 167 
storm water drainage system off lower Main St. discharges onto the southwest corner of this parcel.  168 
The plan set in the application has a note on the lower left corner that says “INV: 493 12” CMP.”  169 
That is the discharge from the City’s drainage system.  Staff spoke with Mr. Walsh about that in 170 
the past.  The discharge from that flows down through the swale to the west of his facility.  That 171 
water tends to collect along the northern boundary of the parcel.  If enough water collects there, it 172 
will flow over the roadway parking lot towards the electrical wholesaler and eventually to the river.  173 
Drainage does flood that out from time to time.  That should not affect the operation of this propane 174 
facility, but it is something to consider.  With regards to Ms. Brunner’s point about maintaining 175 
the vegetative buffer, the City might want to do maintenance of that drainage swale in the future.  176 
He would not want to place a restriction on Mr. Walsh that would preclude the City from doing 177 
that. 178 
 179 
Mr. Walsh asked if maintenance to that drainage facility would mean taking the vegetation out of 180 
the actual swale itself, so the water can flow, not necessarily impacting vegetation along the bank.  181 
Mr. Lussier replied by explaining that they would not be looking at re-grading or anything like 182 
that, but as the trees grow and become more of an obstruction, they would want to remove those. 183 
 184 
Chair Rogers asked for comments from Deputy Chief Chickering.   185 
 186 
Deputy Chief Chickering stated that he called a friend at the Fire Marshall’s Office concerning 187 
this.  He continued that the applicant referenced NFPA 58, for the propane tanks’ distances.  The 188 
Fire Marshall recommended also referencing NFPA 30 for Allowable Distances.  Mr. Walsh 189 
replied that that is on the drawing; it says “a propane tank to be 20 feet from a tank storing 190 
combustible or flammable liquids.”  He continued that they were careful to incorporate that. 191 
 192 
Chair Rogers asked if the applicant had any more to add. 193 
 194 
Mr. Walsh stated that they are a local business.  He continued that they do not intend to spread 195 
way out.  They want to do a good job right here at home, and provide a greener fuel.  That is the 196 
spirit behind this.  They are a family business and plan on remaining a family business. 197 
 198 
Chair Rogers asked for public comment.  Hearing none, he closed the public hearing and asked 199 
the Committee to deliberate. 200 
 201 

6 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 6 of 13 
 

Ms. Brunner stated that it is important to have a note on the plan to codify the buffer between this 202 
property and the residential property.  She continued that it should be worded in a way that makes 203 
it clear that it excludes maintenance of the swale. 204 
   205 
Chair Rogers replied that he agrees, and thinks they could word it to allow for general maintenance 206 
of the slope, as well as the drainage.  Not knowing how old some of these trees are, there might be 207 
the need to clean up some dead wood.   208 
 209 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that since this is a new process, and hopefully a successful one, he assumes 210 
that Chair Rogers would be the one signing the plan.  Chair Rogers replied that is correct.  Mr. 211 
Kopczynski asked if a copy of the minutes can be attached to the plan, in addition to whatever is 212 
structured into the motion itself.  Mr. Rogers replied that he appreciates that, but wants to make 213 
sure it is the desire of the committee to have the motion reflect that.  It should be part of the motion, 214 
but having the minutes attached as well makes sense. 215 
 216 
Chair Rogers reopened the public hearing so he could ask the applicant a question.  He asked if 217 
the current operations meet the floodplain elevations, in terms of protection of Davis Oil’s 218 
equipment.  Mr. Walsh replied yes, all of their stuff now does.  He continued that all of the 219 
secondary containment equipment was new in 2021.  They just upgraded three new tanks to include 220 
biofuel, and it was all State-inspected and State-approved.  To his knowledge, the State was 221 
extremely happy when they signed off on it last spring.  Chair Rogers stated that the plans looked 222 
like they were showing the floodplain elevations, at least for the new construction, with everything 223 
one foot above.  Mr. Walsh replied yes, everything is one foot above the 100 Year Flood; Davis 224 
Oil was very conscious of that. 225 
 226 
Chair Rogers stated that he knows Mr. Coluccio said the dumpster storage is going away.  He 227 
continued that he recommends that a condition be that that use is not carried forward.   As Mr. 228 
Coluccio and Mr. Walsh said, this is actually going to reduce the overall impact on the site.   229 
 230 
Chair Rogers stated that his question about screening from Main St. was already answered.  Mr. 231 
Walsh replied that just to be clear, if you drive by Main St., you cannot see this.  He continued that 232 
the neighbors have to walk to the edge of the bank and look down, to see what Davis Oil has.  It 233 
is not as if the neighbors can see it from their back patio; they are seeing trees.  Chair Rogers 234 
replied that he understands, and as they stated before, there is also the elevation difference between 235 
the site and Main St., which is a screen just in itself.  One small concern, because of the building 236 
that Mr. Walsh stated is right there, is for them to be able to walk to their property and not look 237 
down and automatically see the tanks. 238 
 239 
Chair Rogers stated that Mr. Walsh noted there are no wetlands on his property.  He asked if there 240 
are wetlands on adjacent properties that might fall within the Surface Water Ordinance setbacks 241 
that the applicant would have to adhere to.  Mr. Walsh replied that to his knowledge, the surveyor 242 
says there are no wetlands on his property.  Mr. Lussier stated that the adjacent parcel to the north 243 

7 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 7 of 13 
 

is the electrical distributor, and that facility abuts the Branch River.  He continued that his guess 244 
is yes, they will be within the 250-foot Shoreland Protection setback. 245 
 246 
Chair Rogers asked if the Committee had any more questions for the applicant.  Hearing none, he 247 
closed the public hearing again. 248 
 249 
Ms. Brunner made a motion for the Minor Project Review Committee to approve SPR-01-22, for 250 
the installation of two 30,000-gal propane storage tanks, as presented on the plan identified as 251 
“Site Plan – Proposed Modifications” prepared by Web Engineering Associates, Inc. at a scale of 252 
1 inch = 20 feet on September 20, 2021 with the following conditions prior to signature by the 253 
Minor Project Review Committee Chair: 254 

1. Owner’s signature appears on the plan.  255 
2. Submittal of a revised site plan to show the following: 256 

a. A note stating that, “The existing vegetated buffer along the western property 257 
boundary will be maintained to provide screening for adjacent residential 258 
properties. This shall not preclude the owner or the City of Keene from 259 
providing regular maintenance of the swale or slope in this area.” 260 

b. Inclusion of a detail for the riprap slope to be approved by the City Engineer. 261 
3. The use of storage for trash and/or recycling bins will be discontinued on the site.” 262 

 263 
Mr. Lussier seconded the motion the motion. 264 
 265 
Mr. Lussier asked if the motion included the note about discontinuing the use of the dumpsters to 266 
be added to the plans.  Ms. Brunner replied that that would be a standalone condition.  That is just 267 
a condition that would go with the property moving forward.  Chair Rogers replied that he thinks 268 
a note on the plan stating that would be adequate.   269 
 270 
The motion to approve SPR-01-22 passed unanimously. 271 

 272 
B)  SPR-470, Modification #1 – Site Plan – 62 Maple Ave – Applicant SVE 273 

Associates, on behalf of owner Cheshire Medical Center, proposes to construct a 274 
2,400-sf canopy on the former Peerless Insurance Co. building, modify the 275 
parking configuration, and install a new travel lane on the property located at 62 276 
Maple Ave (TMP# 227-006-000-000-000). The site is 50-ac in size and is located 277 
in the Industrial Park District. 278 

 279 
Chair Rogers introduced SPR-470 and asked to hear from staff. 280 
 281 
Ms. Fortson stated that the applicant has requested exemptions from providing a lighting plan, 282 
drainage report, soil analysis, historic evaluation analysis, and screening analysis.  She continued 283 
that staff have determined that the requested exemptions would have no bearing on the merits of 284 
the application, and recommends that the committee accept it as complete. 285 
 286 

8 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 8 of 13 
 

Ms. Brunner made a motion to accept the application as complete.  Mr. Lussier seconded the 287 
motion, which passed by unanimous vote. 288 
 289 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that he votes in favor, but for the record, with the conditions that have been 290 
explained by Ms. Fortson. 291 
 292 
Chair Rogers opened the public hearing and asked to hear from the applicant. 293 
 294 
Rob Hitchcock, of SVE Associates, Brattleboro VT, formerly 47 Marlboro St., Keene, stated that 295 
they are here today because of the proposed addition of a 2,400 square foot canopy to the backside 296 
of the former Peerless [Insurance] building on Maple Ave.  He continued by explaining that this 297 
is just the beginning of a redevelopment of the building itself.  He stated that 25,000 square feet 298 
of the building will be used for a clinical residency program,  and the creation of this canopy is 299 
part of the proposed renovations for this new use.  A master plan for Cheshire Medical Center is 300 
currently under way to determine the needs and square footage of additional uses within the 301 
building.  Last April, the Zoning Board of Adjustment approved the use of the building with a 302 
Special Exception.  Parking was addressed at that time.  There are 535 existing parking spaces.  303 
The Zoning Code requires 125 total parking spaces for a 25,000 square foot residency program 304 
(considered a “clinical use”), so there are many more spaces on site than are required.   305 
 306 
Chair Rogers asked if the 25,000 square feet is the portion of the building they are proposing to 307 
renovate at this point.  Mr. Hitchcock replied in the affirmative.  Chair Rogers asked what the 308 
overall size of the building is.  Paul Roth replied 147,000 square feet. 309 
 310 
Mr. Hitchcock continued by explaining that in addition to the creation of a canopy, they will also 311 
replacing all the water lines, sewer lines, and electrical lines that run into the building.  Currently 312 
the building is not sprinklered, so they will also do that.  The sewer lines will all be replaced, to be 313 
suitable for its future use.  They are also adding a new travel aisle, so that traffic coming in from  314 
Maple Ave can easily access the parking area in the rear of the building.  He showed where the 315 
turn would be to get to the drop-off area.  He continued by stating that it would be 5,000 square 316 
feet of added pavement, so they do not run everything through the drop-off area.  All the islands 317 
will be heavily landscaped. 318 
 319 
Chair Rogers asked if the committee had questions for the applicant. 320 
 321 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that his question is for Mr. Roth. 322 
 323 
Paul Roth, Dublin resident, stated that he works at Cheshire Medical Center at 580 Court St.   324 
 325 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that this is the first bite of a big building.  He continued by stating that he 326 
assumes they are going through a programming analysis for the rest of the building and this is just 327 
the beginning of the conversation, because they are taking some the parking away, that would be 328 
for the rest of the building, and so on and so forth.  It is a 50-acre parcel.  He assumes that within 329 

9 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 9 of 13 
 

their programming discussions they will come up with recommendations to upper management for 330 
how to use the remainder of those 50 acres.  He asked if that is an accurate statement. 331 
 332 
Mr. Roth replied yes, that is accurate. He continued by explaining that E4H is working on that 333 
with their master planning architect. He went on to state that Lavallee Brensinger Architects are 334 
doing this 25,000 square foot project. Thus, they have two architects – one for this project and one 335 
for the master plan. The uses for the remainder of the parcel are currently being discussed, like Mr. 336 
Kopczynski said, with upper management.   337 
 338 
Mr. Kopczynski asked if it is correct that down the road, they could expect to see other internal 339 
uses, which may or may not have to come to the MPRC or the Planning Board, and also external 340 
building uses or buildings/structures added in the future, which may have to come to the MPRC 341 
or the Planning Board.   He continued that it will probably not happen in the next six months.  Mr. 342 
Roth agreed that it will probably not be in the next six months.  He continued by explaining that 343 
the work they are talking about now is a lot of infrastructure work to set up the building for future 344 
use.  This is a great time to do that, because it is the least impact to both the community and the 345 
building itself while it is empty.  They want to get the infrastructure adequate to support what they 346 
hope will someday be the total occupancy of the building.  Mr. Kopczynski replied yes, and 347 
running sprinkler lines is very positive.  Mr. Roth replied yes, they had extensive conversations 348 
with friends in the Fire Department.  They knew that was a prerequisite and they had that 349 
discussion with upper management prior to purchasing the building. 350 
 351 
Mr. Lussier stated that with regard to future development of the site, the Public Works Department 352 
recently looked at the water and sewer utility capacity on Maple Ave.  He continued that he does 353 
not see any issues with the current proposal, but he would like the applicant to understand that any 354 
future development of a more intense nature may require some offsite improvements to the sewer 355 
system.  There is no problem with water; the City can give them all the water they ever need.  But 356 
the sewer system that serves this site has some capacity limitations.  As they move forward, if the 357 
applicants want to do a more detailed analysis, he would be happy to work with them and their 358 
design team.   359 
 360 
Mr. Roth replied that the uses that will go there are more water-intensive than the previous use, so 361 
they are well aware of that, if he is talking about things like fixture counts, which they will have 362 
to review at a future date.  He continued by stating that he thinks the current occupancy of that 363 
25,000 square feet is well within what they are doing now. 364 
 365 
Chair Rogers stated that as Mr. Kopczynski pointed out, this is the initial bite of an apple; they are 366 
currently putting some use back into an underutilized building, which is great.  However, they 367 
should understand that as they move forward, other proposed uses on that property or within that 368 
structure will require additional review, and some of those reviews could trigger other things.  It 369 
sounds like Mr. Roth is aware of that.  Mr. Roth replied yes, he was initially concerned about the 370 
infrastructure, but he thinks they are addressing their electrical and water needs, both from 371 
domestic and fire protection, but the sewer was a concern.  That is why they scoped the lines and 372 

10 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 10 of 13 
 

are suggesting improvements for that.  He knows there are issues out in the street.  They discussed 373 
the existing building having some issues in the street, too.  They are well aware of that and look 374 
forward to presenting in the future. 375 
 376 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that he wants it to be clear that City staff is here to work with the applicants 377 
and help them, and they hope the applicants understand and appreciate that.  It is also to the City’s 378 
benefit that they work with the applicants.  Mr. Roth replied that he agrees, and they are all here 379 
to serve the community, so they are all on the same team. 380 
 381 
Ms. Brunner stated that for the record, she would like clarification of the traffic analysis that was 382 
included with this submittal.  She continued that she thinks it shows a trip generation for the full 383 
buildout of the building, but at this point in time, they are only doing a partial change of use. She 384 
asked Mr. Hitchcock to speak to the expected traffic impact for this specific partial change of use. 385 
 386 
Mr. Hitchcock replied that it will be substantially less than what was approved as part of the ZBA 387 
approval.  He continued that he did not do any generation of any sort, but certainly, with the Code-388 
required use of 125 parking spaces, the trip generation is minimal.   389 
 390 
Ms. Brunner replied that the application had a traffic analysis, submitted by Stephen G. Pernaw 391 
and Company.  Mr. Hitchcock replied that they generated that as part of the ZBA application.  Ms. 392 
Brunner asked about those two tables in the report; is it only the medical office’s portion of the 393 
table?  Mr. Hitchcock replied that he is not sure what Ms. Brunner’s point is.  Ms. Brunner replied 394 
that if the full buildout were occurring right now, this would have met the trigger for having to go 395 
to the Planning Board for full site plan review, so for the record, she wants to clarify what the 396 
increase in vehicle generation will be just for this partial change of use.  Mr. Hitchcock replied 397 
that he did not run any numbers. 398 
 399 
Liza Sargent stated that she works at SVE Associates and is a resident of Rockingham, VT.  She 400 
continued by explain that the report by Stephen G. Pernaw and Company that they submitted with 401 
the application was for the Special Exception, and for this application, they are proposing the 402 
installation of the canopy and the renovation of 25,000 square feet of the building for use as 403 
medical offices.  The trip generation would be significantly less than the former Peerless use. 404 
 405 
Ms. Brunner asked if they are saying there will actually be a decrease in traffic.  Mr. Hitchcock 406 
replied that yes, a significant reduction from when Peerless was there. 407 
 408 
Chair Rogers stated that just to clarify Ms. Brunner’s questions, he thinks the tables show the 409 
overall proposed building numbers, so they should be aware that at some point in time, as further 410 
development occurs on this site, it could end up in front of the Planning Board as opposed to the 411 
MPRC, in part based on these [traffic] numbers.  It talks about medical offices, administrative 412 
offices, and childcare, and the latter is not part of the conversation today.  Mr. Hitchcock replied 413 
that is correct.  He continued by stating that moving forward, as the uses are developed, they will 414 
turn to the Zoning documents and determine the trip generation off of that.  415 

11 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 11 of 13 
 

 416 
Mr. Kopczynski stated that to put it another way, Ms. Brunner is putting in the record why the 417 
applicants are in front of the MPRC today instead of the Planning Board.  Ms. Brunner agreed.  418 
 419 
Ms. Brunner stated that she noticed some existing trees near where the new drive aisle is proposed.  420 
She continued by explaining that one of the Planning Board standards is to show protective devices 421 
for protecting any existing trees during construction.  She asked if they would be open to including 422 
temporary fencing or something around those trees.  Mr. Hitchcock replied yes. 423 
 424 
Mr. Lussier stated that the note on Sheet D.1 indicates that they will, “Cut out existing wye and 425 
gate at water main,” and he did not see a similar note about the sewer.  He asked if they can add 426 
that to the plan.  Mr. Hitchcock replied sure, but added that there is already a note on the plan 427 
stating that the work must be completed to the satisfaction of the Public Works Dept. Following 428 
this, Mr. Lussier stated that he does not think it has to be added to the plan, but obviously the 429 
applicant knows that the utilities in the street will have to be constructed to City standards and that 430 
will be handled through the Excavation Permit process. 431 
 432 
Chair Rogers asked if there were more questions from the committee.  Hearing none, he recognized 433 
Deputy Chief Chickering for comments. 434 
 435 
Deputy Chief Chickering stated that his two concerns that he wanted to follow up on were the 436 
height of the canopy and the turn radius around the structure, to make sure that the Fire Department 437 
would be able to get fire apparatus in there. Mr. Hitchcock replied that the Keene Fire 438 
Department’s ladder truck has driven [there]. He continued that the canopy height he thought was 439 
13’6,” but he is seeing 10’8” [on the documents], or 14’ cleared. 440 
 441 
Mr. Lussier stated that he has a question regarding the drawings. He asked Mr. Hitchcock to 442 
confirm the rain garden that lies to the west of the drive aisle. If that fills up, where does the water 443 
go? Mr. Coluccio replied that the water all flows to the west. He continued that there is not a lot 444 
of drainage in the parking lot. Everything pitches away from the building. They have to add a 445 
couple of catch basins, because they are adding curbing and sidewalk. 446 
 447 
Mr. Kopczynski asked if, with adding the new parking and such, they will be maintaining all of 448 
the accessibility requirements for accessible routes to the front entrance.  Mr. Hitchcock replied 449 
yes, they have enough ADA parking and are also adding a sidewalk in front of the parking near 450 
the new entry canopy.  Everything is flush with less than a 2% slope in every direction.  Mr. 451 
Kopczynski asked if they will put wheel stops in, where the parking is flush, for protection of the 452 
building.  Mr. Hitchcock replied yes, and sign posts for ADA. 453 
 454 
Ms. Brunner stated that she noticed the narrative for lighting requests an exemption from the 455 
photometric plan.  She continued that however, it would be helpful to have cut sheets for the light 456 
fixtures, just to confirm that they meet all of the standards.  Mr. Hitchcock replied okay, but the 457 
new lights will be underneath the canopy, so by virtue of being underneath, they are automatically 458 

12 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 12 of 13 
 

full cut-off.  Ms. Brunner replied that also, she thinks the color temperature has to be 3,000 or 459 
3,500 or less, and having the cut sheets to show that would be helpful.   460 
 461 
Chair Rogers asked Mr. Hagan and Ms. Brunner if they can deal with this in the building permit 462 
process, to ensure that the lights meet that requirement.  Mr. Hagan replied yes, he can make sure 463 
it is part of that review.  Chair Rogers replied that they would not have to add anything to the plans 464 
if they can handle it under the building permit process.  Ms. Brunner replied that this would not be 465 
a note to the plan; it would just be separate cut sheets put in the project file. 466 
 467 
Chair Rogers asked if there were any more comments from the committee.  Hearing none, he asked 468 
if there were any comments from the public.  Hearing none, he closed the public hearing.  He asked 469 
if the committee had any further deliberations. 470 
 471 
Ms. Brunner stated that the draft language staff prepared as a motion includes the submittal of light 472 
cut sheets and the submittal of a security.  She wants to know if the committee feels that security 473 
would be helpful for the landscaping, as-built plans, and erosion control measures.  They would 474 
typically include that on a Planning Board application, to ensure that the landscaping survives for 475 
one year after installation. 476 
 477 
Chair Rogers asked if Ms. Brunner has an idea of how much landscaping shrubbery or trees are 478 
being added, or if the existing landscaping is just staying there.  Ms. Brunner replied that 479 
landscaping is being added, as shown on sheet LA-1.  She continued that there will be seven sugar 480 
maples and a lot of shrubbery.  Chair Rogers replied that if that much landscaping is being 481 
installed, he recommends they have that [security] as part of the motion, if that is a standard 482 
practice. 483 
 484 
Mr. Lussier asked if that has to be part of the motion or if it is just a matter of course, per the City’s 485 
standards.  Ms. Brunner replied that it needs to be part of the motion.  She asked if Mr. Lussier’s 486 
office would want as-built plans for this project, or if they want to wait until the full project 487 
happens.  Mr. Lussier replied that absolutely they will need as-built plans of the new utilities.  488 
 489 
Ms. Brunner made a motion to approve SPR-470, Modification #1, for the construction of a 2,400-490 
sf canopy on the former Peerless Insurance Co. building, modifications to the parking 491 
configuration, and the installation of a new travel lane, as presented in the plan set identified as 492 
“Cheshire Family Medicine Residency, 62 Maple Avenue, Keene, New Hampshire” prepared by 493 
SVE Associates at varying scales on February 18, 2022, and in the elevations identified as 494 
“Cheshire Medical Center, Family Medicine Residency Center, 62 Maple Ave, Keene, NH 03431” 495 
prepared by LaVallee Brensinger Architects on December 10, 2021 at a scale of 1/8 inch = 1 foot 496 
with the following conditions prior to signature by the Minor Project Review Committee Chair: 497 

1. Owner’s signature appears on the plan.  498 
2. Submittal of cut sheets for the proposed new light fixtures to demonstrate compliance 499 

with the City’s lighting standards. 500 

13 of 23



MPRC Meeting Minutes  DRAFT 
March 10, 2022 

Page 13 of 13 
 

3. Submittal of a security for erosion control, landscaping and as-built plans in an amount 501 
and form acceptable to the Community Development Director and City Engineer. 502 

4. Submittal of a revised site plan to show the proposed method for protecting existing 503 
trees during construction.” 504 

  505 
Mr. Hagan seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous vote.  506 

 507 
4) Upcoming Meeting Dates 508 
• March 24, 2022 at 10:00 AM (if needed due to continued public hearing) 509 
• April 14, 2022 at 10:00 AM 510 

 511 
Ms. Fortson stated that since there are no continued applications, there will not be a March 24 512 
meeting. 513 
 514 

5) Adjournment 515 
 516 
There being no further business, Chair Rogers adjourned the meeting at 11:02 AM. 517 
 518 
Respectfully submitted by, 519 
Britta Reida, Minute Taker 520 
 521 
Reviewed and edited by, 522 
Megan Fortson, Planning Technician 523 

14 of 23



15 of 23



16 of 23



17 of 23



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Planning Board Descriptive Narrative 

342 Winchester Street 

11.22 2022 

 

Descriptive Narrative 

 

Existing / Proposed Uses: 

The portion of the building that is proposed for the tenant fit up has been vacant for some time.  The 

proposed use will be as a restaurant. 

 

Description of Size / Intensity of Use: 

The proposal consists of approximately thirty three seats in the restaurant with an additional thirty five 

seats outside that will be used seasonally. 

 

Description of Proposed Redevelopment: 

This application proposes to redevelop a vacant space within an existing building to be utilized as a 

restaurant.  A new entry to this space is planned along with outdoor seating. 

 

Description of Site and Safety Procedures: 

The site is a portion of an existing building within an existing shopping plaza.   

 

Traffic Impact: 

The project will not bring an increase in traffic as compared to the current use as the portion of the 

building is vacant.  Traffic flow will be in line with the previous use as it was also a restaurant.  Traffic 

pattern through the parking area will not be altered. 

 

Description of Parking Demand / Impact: 

Demand for parking will increase with the proposed project based on the fact that the space has been 

unoccupied.  However, this increase will be in line with the previous restaurant use. 

 

Location of access points: 

Access to the building will be located to the back corner of the building.  It will be adjacent to the main 

parking area.  There is an existing egress on the opposite side of the building that will remain. 

 

Other Descriptive Information: 

This proposal is limited in scope.  There is a small addition to the rear of the building that will replace a 

paved surface with conditioned space.  The proposed outdoor seating area will be placed in an existing 

stone buffer between the sidewalk and the building.  Required drainage will be tied to existing 

underground drainage. 

 

Drainage & Stormwater Management: 

There should be no impact to existing drainage patterns.  The small canopy roof shall be tied to existing 

underground drainage piping.  The proposed expansion proposes no additional impervious surface.  

Drainage shall continue to utilize existing infrastructure. 

 

 

 

18 of 23



 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Sedimentation Control: 

Sedimentation control will continue to utilize existing structures.  Existing drainage structures shall be 

protected with a filter fabric during construction. 

 

Snow Strorage and Removal: 

There will be no change to existing snow removal or storage as part of this proposal. 

 

Landscaping: 

Planting will be reworked in the proposed exterior seating area as necessary.  Any additional plantings / 

screening shall match adjacent / existing plantings and screening materials. 

 

Screening: 

The existing transformer currently has plantings to screen it.  There is no additional equipment planned 

that will require additional screening. 

 

Lighting: 

There are no additional proposed exterior lights as part of this proposal.  Exterior lighting will need to be 

relocated to allow for the installation of the awning structure.   

 

Water & Sewer: 

The building is tied to city water and sewer.  There will be no change in use / intensity when compared 

to previous uses. 

 

Traffic & Access Management: 

There will be no change to site access and traffic patterns as part of this proposal.   

 

Filling & Excavation: 

There will only be minor excavation required for the expansion of the kitchen area.  This area is 

currently paved and located between the existing building and an existing CMU wall approximately 9’ 

tall.  There will be no filling of the site proposed as part of this proposal.   

 

Surface Waters & Wetland: 

There are no wetlands on the site.  There is no change to surface water as part of this proposal. 

 

Hazardous & Toxic Materials: 

There are no hazardous or toxic materials involved with this proposal. 

 

Noise: 

Noise impact from the proposed project will be minimal and consistent with adjacent uses.  The 

proposed exterior seating will have no impact on noise from the site.. 

 

Architectural & Visual Appearance: 

The majority of the architectural and visual appearance of the building will not be impacted as part of 

this proposal.   There will be a new sign for the restaurant and an awning for the exterior seating.  

These elements will be consistent with adjacent buildings.  All proposed materials will be similar / 

consistent with the existing building. 

19 of 23



RITE AID
BUILDING 1

EXISTING
TRANSFORMER

METER BANK

FIRE DEPT

GAS PIPES/GAUGE

EXISTING BUILDING LIVING AREA                    = 5287 SQ FTEXISTING BUILDING GROSS AREA                    = 5487 SQ FTEXISTING LIVABLE AREA                                     = 1790 SQ FTEXISTING GROSS AREA                                        = 1973 SQ FTEXISTING SPRINKLER ROOM                             = 39 SQ FTPROPOSED PREP AREA                                        = 308 SQ FTPROPOSED TENANT LIVABLE AREA                 = 2125 SQ FTPROPOSED TENANT GROSS AREA                    = 2254 SQ FT

DELTA DENTAL
No work this area

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

Existing Walkway

Existing Walkway

Ex
is

tin
g 

W
al

kw
ay

Cross hatch indicates
proposed prep area

EXISTING
PARKING

PROPOSED
RESTAURANT

EXISTING BANK DRIVE-THRU

EXISTING PARKING

W
IN

CH
ES

TE
R 

ST
RE

ET

W
IN

CH
ES

TE
R 

ST
RE

ET

BUILDING 2

JERSEY MIKES
BUILDING 3

GFA FEDERAL
CREDIT UNION

BEAUTY NAILS
SUN TAN CITY

SUPER CUTS
VERIZON

SALLY BEAUTY
SUPPLY

AT&T

WALMART

SIERRA

HARBOR FREIGHT

HOME GOODS

468

468

469

469

469

469

469

470

470

470

470

470

472471

470

472

473

472 472

473

471
472

471

469

470

469

469
470

466

467

467

468
468

469

469

468

469

470

471

469

470

470

470

470

470

470

472471470

470

470

471

472

472

471

473

469

469
469

469

469
468
467

468

468

469

469

466

469

469

469

EXISTING PARKING
EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

ADAADA

NH ROUTE 101

NH ROUTE 101

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING EXISTING PARKING

Existing transformer to remain

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

SSSS

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

ASHUELOT RIVER

Pu
Com

State of NH

State of NH

Public Service
Company of NH

LOT 3
.31 AcC

PARCEL #
111-004-000-000

21 AcC

Existing dumpster location

W

Cross hatch indicates
proposed seating area

PARCEL #
111-001-000-000

6.467 AcC

PARCEL #
111-028-000-000

1.0943 AcC

00

PARCEL #
111-025-000-000

.29 AcC

PARCEL #
111-026-000-000

.3988 AcC

PARCEL #
111-027-000-000

.607 AcC

PARCEL #
111-017-000-000

4.2 AcC

IVY DRIVE

KEY ROAD

Proposed dumpster location

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Architect:

Ramunto's Tenant FitUp
Riverside Plaza
342 Winchester Street
Keene, NH 03431

Delta Pie Keene LLC
230 West Street
Rutland, VT 05701

Owner Review10.19.22
Planning Board11.23.22

--

Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
103 Roxbury Street
Suite 206
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

2022                          WO# 22-026
S A M P S O N    D E S I G N C

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Timothy P. Sampson

Site Plan

11.23.22

A1

as noted

Site Plan
1/64" = 1'-0"Scale:

20 of 23



EXISTING
TRANSFORMER

METER BANK

FIRE DEPT

GAS PIPES/GAUGE

DELTA
DENTAL

ADA
PARKING

ADA
PARKING

DELTA DENTAL
No work this area

EXISTING PARKING

EXISTING PARKING

Existing Walkway

Existing Walkway

Ex
is

tin
g 

W
al

kw
ay

Cross hatch indicates
proposed prep area

EXISTING
PARKING

PROPOSED
RESTAURANT

EXIST

ADAADA

Existing transformer to remain

Existing dumpster location

Cross hatch indicates
proposed seating area

Proposed dumpster location

Partial Site Plan
1/8" = 1'-0"Scale:

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Architect:

Ramunto's Tenant FitUp
Riverside Plaza
342 Winchester Street
Keene, NH 03431

Delta Pie Keene LLC
230 West Street
Rutland, VT 05701

Owner Review10.19.22
Planning Board11.23.22

--

Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
103 Roxbury Street
Suite 206
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

2022                          WO# 22-026
S A M P S O N    D E S I G N C

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Timothy P. Sampson

Partial Site Plan
Material Images

11.23.22

A2

as noted

Material Reference
Not to ScaleScale:

Material Reference
Not to ScaleScale:

Material Reference
Not to ScaleScale: 21 of 23



Remove existing overhead door

Existing light fixture to be moved

6x6 Wood Post;
typ.

Glass overhead door
@ new opening

Provide airlock @
existing meter bank

Expanded concrete
walkway/patio

Freezer vertical wood siding
to match Delta Dental bumpout

Existing roof drainage

Glass entry door Grade (varies)

Existing light fixture to be relocated

RAMUNTOSDELTA DENTAL

Proposed AwningExisting Existing

BRICK OVEN PIZZA

RAMUNTO'S

Downspout to be connected to
underground drainage

Downspout to be connected to
underground drainage

Existing
painted
CMU block

Existing painted
stucco veneer

Existing roof drainage

Existing
Overflow scupper

Existing
Overflow scupper

12
4

Freezer siding per owner

Existing concrete wall

Expanded concrete
walkway/patio

Provide airlock @
existing meter bank

8" Soffit with
metal drip edge 8" Soffit with

metal drip edge

NOTE:
Hatch indicates

proposed construction

12
7

Move existing roof
access ladder

Proposed roof
access ladder location

Provide flashing @
roof/wall connection

30 Year asphalt shingles

New egress door Grade (varies)

Hood vent exhaust location

Provide 36" faux stone
to protect against auto damage

Proposed Existing

BRICK OVEN PIZZA

RAMUNTO'S

4 DISH
WASH

GREASE
TRAP

5 FRYER
47" H

6 FRYER
47" H

7 GRILL
16" H

8
4 BURNER

8.5
CONVEYOR

OVEN

9
PIZZA OVEN

12
D

ES
ER

T 
CO

O
LE

R
42

" 
H

PIZZA
TIERS

17

PIZZA/SAND BAR

40" H

BO
O

ZE
TAPS

BO
O

ZE

PIZZA
TIERS

3
FRIDGE

72" H

2
SAND/
SALAD
48" H

1
STEAM TABLE

33.5" H

UNDER
COUNTER

FRIDGE

13
SO

D
A

CO
O

LE
R

14
CO

N
D

I
M

EN
TS

55
" 

H

15
TA

BL
E

35
" 

H

16
M

IX
ER

METER BANK

FIRE DEPTGAS PIPES/GAUGE

New fire ladder location

ADA BATH

BATH

3068

NOTE:
Building unit demolition prior to

existing conditions measurements

30
68

PROPOSED
PREP AREA

EXISTING WALK-IN COOLER

EXISTING SIDEWALK

New wood framed roof above

EXISTING WALK-IN COOLER

Awning above

KITCHEN

3068

30
68

PROPOSED
COVERED SEATING

10
BACKUP

AND
SLICE
OVEN

11
FLUSH

MOUNT
COOLER

POS

POS
12'-0"W x 8'-0"H Overhead door

with "Air curtain"

PIZZA SLICE
COUNTER

SHELVES BELOW
Remove existing cooler door
with 12" box in cooler area

Move existing cooler
door to new location

EXISTING
SPRINKLER

ROOM

Hood overhead

6'-6"4'
-6

"
6'

-6
"

EXISTING EXTERIOR
CONCRETE PAD

11
'-1

0 
1/2

"

3'-10 1/2"

7'-9 1/4"

4'
-6

"

6'-10 1/2"

42
'-1

"

Provide airlock @
existing meter bank

Solid hatch indicates
proposed construction

20
50

20
50

Hand wash sink

Hand wash sink

Hand
wash sink

Hand wash sink

Fire chemical
suppression tank

3068

ST
O

RA
G

E 
SH

EL
VI

N
G

New entry door @ existing block wall
"Air curtain" to be provided

9'-7 1/2"

EXISTING STONE
WITH PLANTINGS

EXISTING BUILDING LIVING AREA                    = 5287 SQ FT
EXISTING BUILDING GROSS AREA                    = 5487 SQ FT

EXISTING LIVABLE AREA                                     = 1790 SQ FT
EXISTING GROSS AREA                                        = 1973 SQ FT
EXISTING SPRINKLER ROOM                             = 39 SQ FT
PROPOSED PREP AREA                                        = 308 SQ FT
PROPOSED TENANT LIVABLE AREA                 = 2125 SQ FT
PROPOSED TENANT GROSS AREA                    = 2254 SQ FT

GAS GAUGE/PIPING

NOTE:
Hatch indicates

proposed construction

124

Move existing roof access ladder
Proposed roof access

ladder location

Existing concrete
wall in front of building

Insulated entry door

Provide flashing @
roof/wall connection

30 Year asphalt shingles Provide flashing
@ all valleys

Adjust concrete slope
to new door location

Grade (varies)

RAMUNTOS DELTA DENTAL

Hood vent exhaust location

Proposed Existing

Revisions:Date:

 DATE 

 SHEET NUMBER 

 SCALE 

 TITLE 

Prepared For

 PROJECT 

Architect:

Ramunto's Tenant FitUp
Riverside Plaza
342 Winchester Street
Keene, NH 03431

Delta Pie Keene LLC
230 West Street
Rutland, VT 05701

Owner Review10.19.22
Planning Board11.23.22

--

Timothy Sampson
NCARB, LEED AP
103 Roxbury Street
Suite 206
Keene, NH
603 769 7736

2022                          WO# 22-026
S A M P S O N    D E S I G N C

.

.

.

.

.

Engineer:

These drawings are LIMITED SCOPE
and are intended only to describe
general design intent, scale, overall
spatial relationships and material
where indicated.
These drawings shall be considered
preliminary for purposes of design
review, comment, or budget pricing
only, unless expressly released for
other purposes as indicated in the
issue log.
The architect assumes responsibility
for errors in the information
provided, and not for omissions.

Timothy P. Sampson

First Floor Plan
3/16" = 1'-0"Scale:

South (Entry) Elevation
3/16" = 1'-0"Scale:

East Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

North Elevation
1/4" = 1'-0"Scale:

Floor Plan
Elevations

11.23.22

A3

as noted

22 of 23



 
 

Minor Project Review Committee  
 

2023 Meeting Schedule 
 

All meetings are on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 10:00 am, 
unless otherwise noted with an *. 

 
The second monthly meeting is reserved for public hearing continuations 

and will be cancelled if there are none.  
 

1st Monthly Meeting 2nd Monthly Meeting  Application 
Submission Deadline 

January 12, 2023 January 26, 2023 December 16, 2022 

February 9, 2023 February 23, 2023 January 20, 2023 

March 9, 2023 March 23, 2023 February 17, 2023 

April 13, 2023 April 27, 2023 March 24, 2023 

May 11, 2023 May 25, 2023 April 21, 2023 

June 8, 2023 June 22, 2023 May 19, 2023 

July 13, 2023 July 27, 2023 June 23, 2023 

August 10, 2023 August 24, 2023 July 21, 2023 

September 14, 2023 September 28, 2023 August 25, 2023 

October 12, 2023 October 26, 2023 September 22, 2023 

November 9, 2023 *Wednesday, 
November 22, 2023 October 20, 2023 

December 14, 2023 December 28, 2023 Wednesday, 
November 22, 2023 

January 11, 2023 January 25, 2023 December 22, 2023 

23 of 23


	2022_12_08_MPRC Agenda
	City of Keene Minor Project Review Committee
	AGENDA
	Thursday, December 8, 2022       10:00 AM            City Hall, 2nd Floor Council Chambers
	I. Call to Order – Roll Call
	II. Minutes of Previous Meeting – March 10, 2022

	2022_03_10_MPRC_Minutes_MF Edits
	SPR-881, Mod. 2_Packet
	Application_Received 10-21-22
	Affidavit_Received 11-14-22
	Narrative_Received 11-16-22
	Plan Set_REVISED_Received 11-23-22_REDUCED

	Schedule 2023



